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k County School District Doc.

UNITED STATESDISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF NEVADA
* x
O.R., by and through heapents SIG and Case N02:17cv-01541RFB-NJK
LORI ROGICHandSIG andLORI ROGICH

individually, ORDER

Plaintiffs,
V. Defendant’s Partial Motion to Dismigdaintiffs’
CLARK COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICTa Complaint (ECF No. 8)

county school district,

Defendant.

l. INTRODUCTION
Before the Court is Defendant Clark County School Distriegstial Motion to Dismiss.
(ECF No. 8). For the reasons stated below, the Court denies Defendant’s motion.
1. BACKGROUND
On June 6, 201 Plaintiffs filed theirComplaintclaiming thaClark County School District
(the Distric) deprived Plaintiff O.R., a child who has a learning disoatst lives within the
boundaries of the District, of a free appropriate public education (FAPE). (ECF.Naihiffs’
Complaint lists causes of action under the Individuals with Disabilities Eduacatt (IDEA),

Title 1l of Americans with Disabilities AC{ADA) and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of

Dockets.Justia.c

39



https://dockets.justia.com/docket/nevada/nvdce/2:2017cv01541/123276/
https://docs.justia.com/cases/federal/district-courts/nevada/nvdce/2:2017cv01541/123276/39/
https://dockets.justia.com/

© 00 N oo o b~ w NP

N NN DN DN DN N NDN R P RB B B B B R R
0w ~N o 00~ W N RFP O © 0 N O 01~ W N R O

1973 (Section 504)d. Defendant moves to dismiss only the ADA and Section 504 claiG$: (
No. 8).The following factual allegations are taken from Plaint@smplaint.

Before O.R. startekindergartenn 2008,the District determined that she was qualified f
specialeducation service$ECF No. 1 at 8 O.R. attended the District kindergarten program fj
most of the 2002009 school year, until her parents, Sig and Lori Rogich, enrolled her waéepr
school. Id. At her parents’ request, Pettigru Counseling Associates conducted
psychoeducational evaluations of O.R., on®atembei2009 and the other iklarch2013.1d.

The 2013 evaluation byettigru listed the following diagnosesearning Disorder NOA

twa

(Nonverbal Learning Disordeé¥LD); Reading Disorder (Developmental Dyslexia); Mathematics

Disorder; Disorder of Written Expression; Generalized Anxiety DisordgstHymic Disorder;
Developmental Coordination Disorder (in partial resmn); Mixed Receptiv&xpressive
Language Disorder (in partial remission); Phonological Disorder (in rem)sdd. Pettigru
indicated thagtbased on these diagnoses, O.R. reqaispecific teaching methodologglled the
Orton-Gillingham Approacho receive an appropriate educatitth at 9.In January2014, O.R.’s
parents presentdble Pettigruevaluationdo the District.ld.

Upon conducting its own evaluation of O.R.g tBistrict proposedan Individualized
Education Plan (IERp O.R’s parentsn May 2014 and anothein June 2016d. at 9-10.Neither
of the District's IEP proposal includedthe OrtonGillingham Approach that the Pettigru
evaluation recommendedd. at 10.Instead, the District’s IE$“had salient componentfsom
Orton-Gillingham in theaccommodations/modifications and goals to provide a rseltisory
approach.’ld. at 9.0.R.’s parents requested that O.R. be placedtedthers specifically trained
in the Orton&illingham Approach, angblacedO.R.in private scbol until the District completed

such trainingld. The District denied the requests.
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After the IEP discussions failed, O.Rparents filed a Due Process Complaint \&ith
Independent Hearing Officer (IHOYhe complaint claimethat the District failed to provide
O.R. with a FAPE because it failed to take into account and address O.R.’s neeidsl a3 tta
Pettigruevaluationld. at 2-2. In a decision dated November 14, 2016, the IHO agreed, findir
that “the District predermined that under no circumstances would a methodology be put int
the IEP.Id. at 10. he IHOalsoheld that O.Rs parents were entitled to tuition reimbursement
and transportation costs for June 2014, and the 2014-15, 2015-16, and 2016-17 schdd! yed
at 2. The District appealed the IHO’s decision tate Review Officer (SROWho reversed the
IHO’s decision on March 8, 201[. at 11.Plaintiffs then filed the instant lawsu{ECF No. 1).

In its Partial Motion to Dismiss, the District aggithatPlaintiffs didnotallegespecific
facts to establishlaims undeSection 504 and the ADBeyond the facts necessary to establisl
Plaintiffs’ IDEA claim. (ECF No. 8 at 5-7)l'he District argues that Plaintiffs failed to allege
that the District had the requisiteens rea of intentional discriminatiopsuch that Plaintiffs
cannot prevail on damages under Section 504 and the ADA. (ECF No. 8 at 3).

[11. LEGAL STANDARD

An initial pleading must contain “a short and plain statement of the claim showing tha
pleader is entitled to relief.” Fed. R. Civ. P. 8(a). The court may dismissplaint for “failure
to state a claim upon which relief can be granted.” Fed. R. Civ. P). 82(lin ruling on a motion
to dismiss, “[a]ll weltpleadkd allegations of material fact in the complaint are accepted as trug

are construed in the light most favorable to themaving party.” Faulkner v. ADT Sec. Serviceq

Inc., 706 F.3d 1017, 1019 (9th Cir. 2013) (citations omitted).
To survive a motioto dismiss, a complaint need not contain “detailed factual allegatio

but it must do more than assert “labels and conclusions” or “a formulaic racivhtioe elements
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of a cause of action . . ..” Ashcroft v. Igbal, 556 U.S. 662, 678 (2009) (queeih4tlantic Corp.

v. Twombly, 550 U.S. 544, 555 (2007)). In other words, a claim will not be dismissed if it con

“sufficient factual matter, accepted as true, to state a claim to relief that ib|dausits face,”

tains

meaning that the court can seaably infer “that the defendant is liable for the misconduct

alleged.” Id. at 678 (internal quotation and citatianarks omitted). The Ninth Circuit, in

elaborating on the pleading standard describ@aviombly andgbal, has held that for a complaint

to survive dismissal, the plaintiff must allege roonclusory facts that, together with reasonahle

inferences from those facts, are “plausibly suggestive of a claim entitlingaimeiff to relief.”

Moss v. U.S. Secret Servicg72 F.3d 962, 969 (8 Cir. 2009).
V. DISCUSSION
A. Legal Standard

The elements of a Section 504 claim and a claim under Title Il of the ADA are sindila

an

may be addressed togeth&rG. v. Paradise Valley Unified Sch. Dist. No. 69, 815 F.3d 1195,

1204 (9th Cir. 2016)K.M. ex rel.Bright v. Tustin Unified Sch. Dist., 725 F.3d 1088, 1098 (9th

Cir. 2013 (observing that “there is no significant difference in the analysis of rights

obligations created by the two AciguotingVinson v. Thomas, 288 F.3d 1145, 1152 (Bth

Cir. 2002)).To prevail under either statute the education context, a plaintiff must shidythat
she is a qualified individual with a diséty and (2) that she was deniec& reasonable

accommodation that sheeeds in order to enjoy meaningful accesshmbienefits of public

servicesld. at 1204. A plaintiff can only bring a claim under Section 504 against an entity {hat

receives federal funding and can only bring a claim under the ADA againsti@ ¢niigly. K.M.

ex rel. Bright v. Tustin Unified Sch. Ois 725 F.3d 1088, 1099 (9th Cir. 2013).

A plaintiff may satisfy the first elemeidty showing (a) that she has a physical or ments

impairment that substantially limits one or morehef major life activities (b) a record of such
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an impairment; ord) that she igegarded as having such an impairment. 42 U.S.C. § 1210R(2)

(2012). A plaintiff may satisfy the second element by showtmagt the defendaritdenied her
services that she needed to enjoy meaningful access to the benefits of agwdditon and that
were available as reasonable accommodations” or “that the program deniecdhaghuaccess
to public education through another means, such as by violating a regulation that inglg
section 504s prohibitions.”A.G., 815 F.3d at 1204inally, a defendant can only be liable fo
damages under Section 504 or the ADA dgated intention& or with deliberate indifferencen
“fail[ing] to provide meaningful access or reasonable accommodatidisabled person 4.

B. Discussion

The District argues that Plaintiftfid not adequately pleatieir ADA and Section 504

claims kecaise the Complaint only includes conclusory allegationsdaednot includesufficient

factual allegationsto establish the requisit@ens rea under the ADA and Section 504. Having

looked at the four corners of the complathg Court finds thalPlaintiffs alleged sufficient facts
to state a claim under tWDA and Section 504, in addition to the IDEA.

i. Qualified Individual with a Disability

Plaintiffs alleged sufficient facts folausibly establistthat O.R. is a qualified individual
with a disability under the ADA. Plaintiffs allege that the District first regaf@dd®l. as having a
disability in 2007 when it found that she was eligible fgpecial education and related serviceg
(ECF No. 1 at 8 The Pettigru evaluations show that O.R. had a numberledrning and
developmental disorderShese diagnoses substantially limited O.R.’s learning abjlregsiiring
aspecific methodology tovercome these deficits. The District’s evaluatialespite providing

differentteaching methodology, did not find to the contrddy.at 9-10. Therefore, Plaintiffs

men

r

S.



© 00 N oo o b~ w NP

N NN DN DN DN N NDN R P RB B B B B R R
0w ~N o 00~ W N RFP O © 0 N O 01~ W N R O

alleged suffieent facts to plausibly establighat O.R. had a mental impairment for at least $

years and that the District regarded her as having a disability.

ii. Denial of a Reasonable Accommodation

Plaintiffs alleged sufficient factotplausibly establisithat the District denied O.R. 3

reasonableaccommodation, which she needt&x enjoy meaningful access to an educatign

Plaintiffs allegethat the District violatedato regulations under Section 504:

a. denying O.R. the opportunity to participate in amhefit from federally assisted
regular education services, programs and activitiegiolation of 29 U.S.C. §
794(a) and 34 C.F.R. §104.4(a)(b)(l);

X

b. failing to provide O.R. an opportunity to participate in and benefit from education

and related services that is at least equal to the opportunity afforded to stude
without dsabilities, undeB4 C.F.R 104.4(b)(1)(iii), (2).

Id. at 15. Plaintiffs also alleged similar violatiomisthe ADA regulations:

a. subjecting O.R. to discrimination and retaliatiamyiolation of 28 C.F.R. §
35.130(a) and 42 U.S.C. §12203;

b. excluding O.Rfrom participating in and denying her the benefit of District
services, programs, and activities on this basis of her disability, in violation of
C.F.R. 8 35.130(a);

c. denying O.R. the opportunity to participate in and benefit from aids, benefits &
savices on a basis equal with that afforded others, in violation of 28 C.F.R. §
35.130(b)(2)(ii);

d. failing and refusing to make reasonable modifications in policies, practices, of

procedures when the modifications are necessary to avoid discriminatiort agg

O.R., in violation of 28 C.F.R. § 35.130(b)(7);

e. limiting O.R. in the enjoyment of rights, privileges, advantages, or opportuniti¢

enjoyed by others receiving the aid, benefit, or service, in violation of 28 C.F.
35.130(b)(2)(vii).

(ECF No. 1 ai4—-15).Plaintiffs’ Complaint provides sufficient facts pvausiblyestablish that the

District’s denial itself, if not violations of specific regulations, deprive®R.CGof a reasonable

accommodation that would have provided her meaningful access to a public education. Firg

gualified for an accommodation under the ADA and the IDEA based on her diagnoses anel b

she was @&choolagedchild within the District’'s boundariegd. at 1-2. SecondPlaintiffs allege
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that they requested the accommodation during IEP meetitigshe District.ld. at9. Plaintiffs
argue hat thisaccommodationwas necessary for O.R. to receive meaningful access td
education based on O.R.'s diagnoses #relPettigru evaluation recommending the Orton
Gillingham Approach.ld. at 8, 10. Lastly, Plaintiffs allege that not only did the Duosttenythe
accommodationt predetermined that it would not include the accommodation in O.R.’4dEP}|
at 10.
iii. Federally-Funded Program/Public Entity
The Districtdoes not dispute thatis a public entity thateceives federal fundand so

both Section 504 and the ADA could appiythis caseK.M. ex rel.Bright, 725 F.3dat 1099.

iv. MensRea
The Districtargues that Plaintiffs failed tallegefacts that showhat it acted withthe
requisitemens rea for intentional discrimination, a®quired to prevail on damag€ECF No. 8
at 3. The causation standard is different for Section 504 claims versus ADA clainter the

ADA, “if the evidence could support a finding that there is more than one reason forgadlgllg

discriminatory deision, a plaintiff need show only that discrimination on the basis of digab
was a ‘motivating factor’ for the decisiorld. Section 504 claims require a plaintiff to establigh
a denial of services “solely by reason of” a plaintiff's disabilitg. (internal citations omitted).

Under either type of claim]aintiffs can establish this element by showing that District acted v

“discriminatory animus” or with “deliberate indifferenceX.G., 815 F.3d at 1204. Deliberate

indifference requires notice or “knowledge that a harm to a federally protected sghstantially

—+

likely, and a failure to act upon that . likelihood.” Id. A plaintiff can show that the defendan

had notice by showing that plaintiff “alerted the public entity to [her] f@edccommodation (or
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where the need for accommodation is obvious, or required by statute or regulédiofguoting

Duvall v. County of Kitsap, 260 F.3d 1124, 1139 (9th Cir.2001)).

Importantly, the District does not disputeat it received noticefd.R.’s needs anthe
recommendationsnade regarding her educatidplaintiffs allege thathey put the District on
notice by providingit with the Pettigruevaluations and specifically requesting the O+to
Gillingham Approachin multiple IEP meetings(ECF No. 1 at 89). Plaintiffs argue that such arj
accommodation was required by the IDEA, ADA, and Section 04t 1.Thereforethe Court
finds that Plaintiffs have alleged sufficient facts to show that the Distrmoty have been

deliberately indifferenin denying O.Rthe accommodation, as discussed above.

V. CONCLUSION
IT ISTHEREFORE ORDERED that Defendan€Clark County School District's Partial
Motion to DismisSECF No. § is DENIED.

DATED this 31stday ofMarch, 2018.

s

RICHARD F. BOULWARE, 11
UNITED STATESDISTRICT JUDGE




